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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Ltd (VHFC) is a
Public Limited Company registered with National
Housing Bank (NHB) as Housing Finance
corporation. The Company was incorporated on
February 04, 2005 under the provisions of
Companies Act 1956.
If you are self-employed, and without
comprehensive documented income or adequate
credit history, getting a home loan can prove to be
a huge challenge in India. This is because traditional
lenders, in the current eco-system, find it difficult
to ‘fit’ your case into their income assessment
methods. Consequently, potential home buyers
like you end up borrowing from informal lenders or
sometimes abandon the dream of owning a home,
despite your need or indeed the basic ability to
service the loan.
Vastu Housing Finance is addressing this gap by
using a combination of technology and the
traditional distribution model to provide simple,
easy and flexible loans, and through its unique
ability to acquire and underwrite large volumes of
such loans, serve this under-served community.
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This year was the second full year of operations for the company and has been remarkable in many ways. Your company
laid a strong foundation through significant investments in people, technology, and the branch network.

It also significantly strengthened senior and mid management team by recruiting experienced retail finance
professionals from reputed organizations. The total staff strength has now reached 461 including 226 experienced
professionals hired this year across functions.
The investments in people and the branch network has started to show results and has helped the company to disburse
housing and loan against property (LAP) loans to an additional 5,300 customers.

Your company is very well capitalized with Rs. 35,382 lakhs of equity
capital and a modest financial leverage of 1.3x
Vastu has been fortunate to establish Borrowingrelationships with more than 12 prominent financial institutions at a very
early stage of its journey. The company also recently raised Rs. 20,000 lakhs NCD (including undrawn) from one of the
prominent mutual funds – one of the largest issuance’s amongst housing finance companies of similar size in recent times.
The management team has been relentlessly focussing on instituting strong systems and processes, to ensure high quality
loans at the time of origination. Such focus has enabled the company to close the year with nil NPA’s.
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The key shareholders and the management team have also
worked together to institute strong standards of corporate
governance, integrity and transparency, which are the
bedrock of Vastu’s culture. A strong vote of confidence on the
Vastu platform is the A/stable credit rating that one of the
credit rating agencies assigned to your company this year.
To achieve such level of credit rating within the first two years
of operations is a highly commendable achievement and one
of its kind among housing finance companies in India. On an
overall level, your company has become more noticeable
among the customers and the ecosystem partners which is
enabling Vastu to grow well.
In the last two years, the overall housing finance ecosystem
has improved with conscious thrust of the government
through incentives to the customers and developers. Your
company has instituted presence across multiple key markets
to fully appropriate state level benefits while reducing local
market concentration. Today, no single state forms more than
20% of Vastu’s monthly disbursements. The focus would be
to improve the diversification further as the branch network
expands and as the newly opened branches mature. The retail
credit bureaus in the country have gained attraction with
significant improvement in the quality of data.
However, many of your company’s target segment
customers, which is low to mid-income salaried and selfemployed professionals, have limited credit bureau history. In
addition, these customers do not have well documented
income proofs.
To underwrite such customers, your company’s experienced
field officers assess the customer’s cash flow through detailed
personal discussions and maintain adequate collateral
coverage to enhance the margin of safety. The average Loan
to Value (LTV) ratio for the outstanding book is less than 50%.
Such approach has helped the company in creating a strong
credit quality loan book.

Vastu is now ready to fully
appropriate the Multi Decade
Trillion Dollar Affordable housing
opportunity in India.
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Your company now has a very strong foundation driven
by significant investments in organizational capabilities
and governance practices.
I would like to conclude by extending my heartfelt
thanks to the entire team of Vastu, our customers,
regulators, lenders, board members, and other
stakeholders, without whose support all these
achievements would not have been possible.

The company would aim
to
further
strengthen
relationships
with
the
ecosystem partners to enable
many more Indians realize
their housing dream and
contribute to the India
affordable housing finance
story for the decades to come.
Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
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At Vastu, we recognize that the knowledge, commitment, integrity and execution capability of our team are our greatest
strengths. With our operations expanding to twelve states in India, the Vastu family doubled in size in FY 2017-18 to reach
461 team members across India.
At the heart of our expansion strategy has been the continuous focus on building a team based on our core values. which
we define as the “4 E’s for Excellence”.

This has helped us build an organization, which is:
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By focusing on our core values, we have successfully
built an organization of highly energetic and
passionate team members with domain-depth,
credibility built from experience, highest standards of
integrity and predilection for innovation. Our team
works beyond boundaries, leveraging each other’s
strengths and building a respected franchise which is a
great place to work. Vastu has evolved into an
organization with best-in-class ISO-certified risk and
quality management systems and processes that
thrive on technology and innovation. Vastu is at the
forefront of technology-led innovation and analytics
backed risk management and is amongst the few
companies in India to have a completely paper-less
loan approval process.

In FY 2017- 18, Vastu’s disbursals grew 300% compared to
FY 2016- 17 and crossed Rs 63,000 lakhs of new mortgage
loans. The Company’s portfolio crossed Rs 74,000 lakhs in
FY 2017-18, touching the lives of more than 7,000 families
in India, even in the face of a challenging credit
environment with the impact of demonetization and GST
Implementation. We achieved this without compromising
on credit quality and ended the year with nil NPA’s. The
company continued to maintain high standards of
operational efficiency, closing FY 2017-18; its second year
of operations with a Profit Before Tax (PBT) of Rs 2,750
lakhs. The Company received its first refinance line from
the regulator, National Housing Bank. Additionally, the
Company issued NCDs to Franklin Templeton for Rs
10,000 lakhs in FY 2017-18.

FY 2017-18 Vastu’s disbursals grew 300%
Portfolio crossed Rs 74,000 lakhs
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I am pleased to share that our growth was recognized with an A
category rating by three independent Credit Rating Agencies. The
rating upgrades for Vastu are amongst the fastest rating upgrades in
Indian financial services industry. This is recognition for the quality
of the business built, the commitment of our shareholders, and
quality of our team and risk management practices.
As we step into FY 2018-19, we are confident that Vastu is well
poised to build a large credible and differentiated financial services
platform. One of our key initiatives in FY 2018-19 will be to continue
investing in technology to achieve our goal of Tech 2.0 – pioneering
new processes and market first to strengthen our position as an
experienced risk organization with local domain focused on strong
analytics, credit bureau and social behavior of our customer
segment while continuing to deliver to our customers a broad &
customizable suite of products in a simple, speedy and efficient
manner.
Finally, I would like to express our sincere thanks and gratitude to
our Shareholders, Bankers, Stakeholders, Partners, Lenders and the
Regulator, National Housing Bank besides all our team members for
their continued support and cooperation.
Sincerely,

Sandeep Menon
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Ms. Renuka Ramnath

Mr. Samir Bhatia

Chairperson & Nominee Director

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Renuka Ramnath joined the company in July 2017
as a Director and became the Chairperson & Nominee
Director of the company. She is also the Founder,
Managing Director & CEO of Multiples Alternate Asset
Management Private Limited (“Multiples”).

Mr. Samir Bhatia is a Non-Executive Director at Vastu.
Samir is a serial entrepreneur who brings a strong mix
of entrepreneurial passion and deep knowledge of the
SME lending space. He started SMEcorner, India's first
online platform for SME loans, in response to a
significant and growing SME financing gap in India that
could be effectively served by the SMEcorner
platform.

Renuka brings on board her deep experience of raising,
investing and returning third party capital across several
economic cycles. She looks to build Multiples as a
platform to channelize long-term capital, to create
valuable enterprises and successful entrepreneurs. She
draws motivation from the fact that supporting
entrepreneurs to build sustainable businesses has the
potential to generate employment, to create ripple
effects in the Indian economy and to facilitate the
greater process of nation building.
She has spent over two and half decades in the Indian
financial services sector across private equity,
investment banking and structured finance. As one of
the early private equity investors in India, she played a
pivotal role in shaping the market both in terms of
leading pioneering investments such as buy-outs as well
as opening new pockets of capital for investment in
Indian private equity. In her last role as the MD & CEO
of ICICI Venture for close to a decade, she has
contributed in many ways to the evolution of that firm
to one of the largest private equity funds in India.
Renuka holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
VJTI, University of Mumbai and an MBA from the
University of Mumbai. She has also completed the AMP
from The Harvard Business School.
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Samir brings 30 years of experience from leading
companies such as Citibank, HDFC Bank, Barclays
Bank, and Equifax. Samir is an avid runner (he has
completed 25+ marathons and half marathons to
date) and an animal lover.
Samir is a Chartered Accountant from the Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India and a Cost Accountant
from the Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants of India.
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Mr. P.H. Ravikumar

Mr. Sudhir N. Variyar

Non-Executive Nominee Director

Non-Executive Nominee Director

Mr. P.H. Ravikumar is a Non-Executive and founder
Director at Vastu (post change of ownership and
control). He has been an Independent Director and
Non-Executive Chairman of the company from January
2014 till July 2017.

Mr. Sudhir N. Variyar is a Nominee Director at Vastu,
he joined Multiples Alternate Asset Management in
2009 at inception. Sudhir has been in the private
equity industry since 2005 and has a strong
investment management track record.

He was part of the core team which set up and built
ICICI Bank. At ICICI Bank, his responsibilities included
at different points of time, business strategy, treasury,
corporate banking and also risk management. As the
Head of SME & Agri Business in the merged ICICI Bank,
his role included building and growing the bank’s
portfolio in these sectors both on liabilities as well as
on assets side, apart from services to these sectors. In
its first full year of functioning, the bank emerged as
the second largest lender to the agri business sector in
India.He was also the Founder Managing Director and
CEO of National Commodities & Derivatives Excahnge
Ltd.

Prior to Multiples, Sudhir was a Senior Director at
ICICI Venture. In this capacity, Sudhir led
investments in the financial services and energy
sectors and was part of the Investment Committee
at ICICI Venture.
At Multiples, Sudhir is one of the Investment
committee members. Sudhir is also on the Boards of
Vikram Hospitals and Delhivery Private Limited.

He is also on the boards of several other companies
including Bharat Financial Inclusion Ltd., Dotex Ltd. (a
100% subsidiary of National Stock Exchange Ltd.) both
as Chairperson, Aditya Birla Capital Ltd., Bharat Forge
Ltd., Escorts Ltd., UTI Retirement Solutions Ltd.
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Mr. Vijay Kumar

Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak

Independent Director

Independent Director

Mr. Vijay Kumar is on the Board of the Company as
an Independent Director since January 2018.

Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak joined the Board of the
Company as an Independent Director on March 2,
2015. He is a Sr. Chartered Accountant and the
Managing Partner at G S Nayak & Co, Mumbai. He
leads the Audit, Taxation, Bank Audit team.

Mr. Vijay Kumar has over 30 years of experience in
the Banking and Information Technology sectors. He
worked with the NIIT Group from the year 2000 until
August 2012. During this period, he was responsible
for M&A and corporate finance activities of NIIT and
NIIT Technologies and was involved in several large
transactions involving acquisition and divestiture of
companies, joint ventures, strategic alliances, and
corporate restructuring.
Prior to the year 2000, he worked with the ICICI
Group for over 15 years. He was involved in various
roles, with project finance and investment banking.
He advised several companies across industries, in
equity and debt raising, M&A and corporate
structuring. His last position with the group was with
ICICI Securities, as Head of Investment Banking. Since
August 2012. He was also associated as Advisor/
Director, with companies in the BPO, Media, and
Private Equity areas, besides his role as a consultant
with NIIT Technologies. He is currently serving as an
independent director on several boards. He holds a
B. Tech degree from IIT Delhi and an M.B.A from
FMS, University of Delhi.
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He has researched extensively on the emerging issue
of convergence into Global Accounting Standards
called IFRS including transition, reporting and audit.
He is instrumental in rendering professional advice on
International tax issues including DTAA application
and Transfer Pricing. He is also an Independent
director in some Public and Private Limited
Companies in his Professional Capacity.
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Mr. Sandeep Menon
Managing Director & CEO
Sandeep Menon is the Founder Managing Director and CEO at
Vastu (post change of ownership and control). He is a senior
banker with over 20 years of diverse experience in General
Management, Business Strategy and Risk Management with
various country level business leadership roles across Consumer
Lending, SME Lending, Home Loans, Personal Loans and
Commercial Finance across leading Foreign Banks and Financial
Institutions such as GE Capital, Standard Chartered Bank and
Barclays Bank Plc.
He has built large lending business across Secured and UnSecured
Lending. Sandeep was part of the founding team at Barclays Bank
PLC in India as the Director and Head of Retail Assets and Banking
Strategy.
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LOCATION

16

BRANCHES

Andhra Pradesh

5

Delhi-NCR

1

Gujarat

6

Karnataka

3

Madhya Pradesh

6

Maharashtra

4

Rajasthan

5

Tamil Nadu

2

Telangana

1

Uttar Pradesh

1

Uttarakhand

1

Grand Total

35

Head Office
Mumbai

2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. INDIAN ECONOMY OUTLOOK
For India, FY 2017-18 saw various key structural initiatives to build strength across macro-economic parameters to set the
stage for sustainable growth in the future, including the implementation of the Goods & Services Tax (GST).
The Indian Economy expanded 7.2% year-on-year in the last three months of FY 2017-18, higher than the upwardly revised
6.5% advance in the previous period and beating market expectations of 6.9%. This growth was bolstered by a jump in
investments as well as public spending.
As global economic activity continues to strengthen, global growth is forecast to grow by 3.9% during FY 2017-18 as per
IMF January 2018 World Economic Outlook. The IMF expects India to grow at 7.4% during 2018, which could increase
further to 7.8% during 2019. The Economic Survey for 2017-18 pegs the figure at 7% - 7.5% for FY 2018-19.
As noted by the CII in their report on Indian Economic outlook for FY 2018-19, the global economy is stabilizing with
favorable global trade and financial conditions. Domestically, GST promises to deliver positive outcomes as India becomes
a single, more competitive market.
Consequently, the outlook for Indian economy looks promising and with an upward growth in FY 2018-19.

2. INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Mortgage to GDP Ratio in India continues to be lower as compared to the rest of the world. As per ICRAs Indian Mortgage
Finance Market Update for H1 FY 2017-18, the Indian mortgage to GDP ratio stood at 10%. It is anticipated that by March
2022, this figure will increase to 12%-14%.

The Mortgage Market is expected to almost double from an estimated Rs 17 lakh crores in FY 2017-18 to Rs 33 lakh crores
in FY 2021-22.
Housing Finance Companies are expected to continue holding 40% of the outstanding Home Loans market in FY 2018-19,
the same as FY 2017-18. However, with the increasing number of Housing Finance Companies entering the market, ICRA
estimates that this share may increase to 41% by the end of FY 2018-19.
Housing finance companies and Public Sector Banks are dominating the Gross Housing Loan Portfolio. While the Gross Loan
Portfolio (GLP) for Housing Loans (HL) is growing 18% year-on-year, GLP with Housing Finance Companies is growing faster
at 21% year-over-year growth.
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The main factor influencing growth in Housing Finance is the growing demand from the populations in line with social and
economic development, consistent with the Government’s push to promote housing.
The Government of India continues to back Housing Finance, particularly Affordable Housing Finance, via the Pradhan
Mantri Awas Yojana (or PMAY) which is working with the goal of providing “Housing for All” by 2022.
This mission is taking on the huge challenge to plug a housing gap of nearly 10 million units, as per Government estimates.
The Government’s focus has resulted in the Affordable Segment being the highest growth segment in terms of new
residential sector launches.

New Residential Sector Launches

18

Segment

FY 16 (Units)

FY 17 (Units)

Growth %

Affordable

29.3K

32.3K

10.1%

Mid Range

72.8K

64.3K

(11.7) %

High End

14.6K

10.7K

(26.7) %

Luxury

0.9K

1.0K

2.7%

Total

117.6K

108.2K
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The increasing number of Housing Finance companies has resulted in competition in this segment to be at an all-time high.
At the end of FY 2014-15, there were 66 Housing Finance Companies. Over the course of three years, by February 2018,
this count increased by 40% to reach 92. Additionally, there are 14 Housing Finance Companies that are awaiting
operational license from the NHB. The number of HFCs is expected to continue to increase, as the NHB is working with the
goal to launch 150 Housing Finance Companies by 2022.
The intensified competition has resulted in a price war, especially among the newer Housing Finance Companies. For some
companies, this price war has resulted in diluted credit qualities, which in turn will result in higher delinquencies and poor
portfolio quality.

2.1. CHALLENGES IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING FINANCE
The Challenges in the affordable housing finance space particularly for the HFCs can be classified into three segments:

a)

Absence of formal income documents can make underwriting a more tedious and expensive process than in the
traditional housing finance segment

b)
c)

Access to low-cost funds and the cost of debt are major challenges

d)

Higher servicing costs can create opex pressures. Ability to build scale ahead of competitors to ensure
profitability in a high opex/lower margin environment

e)

Lower asset appreciation and less liquid markets especially in smaller towns/rural markets can lead to difficulty
in sale during recoveries

f)
g)

Timely completion of projects without cost escalations is a concern for borrowers as well as lenders

Credit risk assessment, retention of quality credit, early warning systems for default monitoring/follow-up are
operational challenges

Ability to build an enabling environment via faster approvals, support infra, easier FDI processes, low cost funds,
tax incentives etc.

The issues around the acquisition of land and the multiplicity of approvals have adverse impact on the ultimate cost to the
borrowers. Historically it is observed that pricing of Home Loans in the market has been quite opaque with interest rates
being more relationship and business driven and benefits of rate cuts not being passed immediately or not being passed at
all to the customers.

2.2 OPPORTUNITIES IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING FINANCE
a)

Sizeable demand which is largely untapped: Traditional Banks and Financial Institutions typically cater to the
Formal Salaried income segment and not the semi-formal/in-formal salaried or self-employed segments. Majority
of India’s population is self-employed

b)

Developers and Government in India have unutilized land, banks which could be tapped to cater to the Affordable
Housing segment

c)

At a policy level, HFCs are being incentivized to cater to the Affordable Housing market in various forms such as
concessional refinance opportunities
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d)

Most advances in this segment are to first-time home buyers where the mortgaged property is self-occupied and
can hence be perceived to be relatively less risky

2.3 OUTLOOK
The outlook for affordable housing finance, especially in terms of demand drivers, is looking positive. significant volumes
are anticipated for HFCs in this segment. However, not every HFC will be equipped to handle the risks that come with
lending to the Affordable Housing customer, who may have incomplete/insufficient documentation and whose underlying
collateral may have its own set of challenges. The HFCs which are not able to manage the complexities including
understanding local land laws and accurately assessing repayment capacity of the borrower from erratic cash flows, will
see a surge in Non-Performing Assets in the future.

3. VASTU: BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Ltd (“the Company”) is a housing finance Company under the regulatory jurisdiction of
the National Housing Bank (NHB) in India. The Company underwent a change of ownership and control in August, 2015
(approved by the NHB on July 31, 2015).
The Company has a Gross Loan Portfolio of INR 743.9 crores as on March 31, 2018. The Company is primarily engaged in
providing affordable home loans to low income households in India.
At the end of FY 2017-18, Vastu was operational in 12 States with 37 Branches with over 461 employees Pan India.
The core business of the Company is providing home loans and home equity loans to its customers from low income
households.

A significant proportion of the customer base is self-employed including
those running their own small and micro enterprises, professionals in
early stages of their career growth. Another segment of customers comes
from class IV employees’ segment of the organised/governmental sector.
These individuals often have either no or very limited access to loans from
organised financial services sector loan providing entities. This is because
they do not have acceptable documented levels of cash flows and other
means of assessing their income and cash flow levels. The Company
believes that non-institutional sources typically either do not provide
them with home loans or charge them very high rates of interest. The
Company aims to bridge this gap by providing financial services at the
door step to this customer segment.
The customers are predominantly located in tier II and below category
cities and semi- urban/rural areas, suburbs of tier I cities and far suburbs
of metropolitan cities. The Company extends loans for their homes and
for leveraging their homes as equity for their vocation/business purposes
for other income-generating activities and not for personal consumption.
In its core business, the Company follows a geography by geography
contiguous lending model. After intensive research, the Company has
identified geographies which offer opportunities for the Company to have
clusters of borrowers in these areas.
Most of the borrowers either have their places of work near the intended
home location or the place of work is well connected by public transport
to their place of work.
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Typically, the home loans are for periods upwards of 10 years – normally for a 15 to 20 year period. In addition to its core
business of providing home loans and home equity loans, the Company uses its distribution channel to provide certain risk
mitigating products relevant to the customers typically like life insurance and health insurance products.

The Company leverages current and emerging technologies in particular the digital technology to reach customers and
makes the entire process of loan origination near paper-less till approvals are granted. The Company has fruitful
partnerships with chosen credit bureaus, legal firms and process control organizations as well as KYC verification firms to
establish the bonafides of the customers, consistent with its mission, client-focus and commercial viability.

The Company is registered with National Housing Bank as a housing finance company. In FY 2017-18, the Company has
raised capital of INR 225 Crores from its existing investors taking the paid-up capital from INR 128.82 Crores to INR 353.82
crores. A further issue of capital of INR 225 crores has been approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 21st
July, 2017.
For FY 2017-18, the Company’s total revenue and profit after tax was INR 95.00 crores and INR 19.61 crores respectively.
As on March 2018, the Company had more than 6,500 borrowers spread over 10 states.
The Company has a diversified borrowing and investor mix and has raised debt from Mutual Funds, Banks, Small Finance
Banks and Financial Institutions via Term Loans and Listed and Unlisted Non - Convertible Debentures. The Company closed
FY 2017-18 with INR 475.28 Crores of debt Outstanding leading to a low gearing of 1.30.
The Company has also received a rating upgrade moving from BBB+/Stable in FY 2016-17 to A-/Stable in FY 2017- 18.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES
Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business, and sound risk management is critical to the success of the organization.
As a financial intermediary, the Company is exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and the environment within
which it operates. The Company has identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor
and manage risks throughout the Company. The risk management process is continuously improved and adapted to the
changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness in
the changing risk landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk landscape on an
event-driven basis.
The Company’s approach to risk management is based on three critical factors –
a) Customer’s credit worthiness
b) Clarity on the title to the property and
c) Operational policy & Compliance Processes
Major risks identified in the realm of credit risk are addressed through past behaviour of customers in earlier loans (through
partnerships with credit bureaus), robustness of their current and emerging cash flows through detailed study of their
sustainable cash inflows and current and future financial commitments. Similarly, the risks relating to the property are
addressed through partnerships with local service providers as also with credit bureaus. The states chosen are where the
housing demand is concentrated are perceived to be relative more developed economically, politically and socially. The
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Risk Management Committee of the Board reviews the risk management policies in relation to various risks and regulatory
compliance issues.

5. OPERATIONAL RISKS
The Company needs a high level of consistency in its processes and controls. All critical operational processes have been
made amenable to technological platforms and are hence standardised. Internal audit overview subjects these operations
to review on an ongoing basis. This approach has enabled predictability of transactions, as a risk mitigant.

5.1. ISO Certification
The Company has already received ISO 9001 :2015 and 27001: 2013 accreditations from Bureau of International
Certification (U.K) in March, 2016. It is one of the youngest companies in the sector to be so certified. The rigour of
adequate controls and processes in place with respect to its operations is backed by continuous Internal Audit which acts
as the third line of defence by monitoring adherence to controls and processes and provides inputs for strengthening risk
management.

6. LIQUIDITY RISK
The Company places significant importance on liquidity management and has a bias for liquidity mainly to address
operational requirements and corporate commitments. The current levels of capital adequacy –well over 80.92% - and the
lines of credit currently under finalisation with Banks ensure that there is a well-defined liquidity metrics viz, cash burn,
business continuity and growth tests to ensure sufficient liquidity in line with business requirements and aid risk mitigation.
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BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 14th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together
with the Audited Financial Statements and the Report of the Auditors for the financial year ended 31 st March 2018.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars

2017-18

2016-17

Change (%)

Revenue from Operations

7,378.51

1,603.93

360

Other Income

2,121.85

594.81

256.72

Total Revenue

9,500.36

2,198.74

332.09

Profit before Finance Costs, Depreciation and Taxation

4,864.82

183.15

2,556.20

Less: Finance Costs

2,054.63

105.72

1,843.46

59.89

23.93

150.27

Profit Before Tax

2,750.30

53.50

5,040.75

Less: Tax expense

789.29

7.84

NA

1,961.01

45.66

4,194.80

Less: Depreciation and amortization expenses

Profit After Tax

2. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars

2017-18

2016-17

Change (%)

Number of branches

37

24

54.17

Number of borrowers

5,319

1,868

184.74

Number of employees

461

240

92.08

Amount Sanctioned (INR in Lakhs)

66,130.70

20,754.12

218.64

Amount Disbursed (INR in Lakhs)

63,273.66

19,703.83

221.12

Amount Outstanding (INR in Lakhs)

74,394.43

20,138.88

269.41

3. BUSINESS OVERVIEW
During the financial year ending 2018, the Company’s total revenue and profit after tax was INR 7,378.51 Lakhs and INR
1,961.01 Lakhs, respectively. As of 31st March 2018, the Company had 5,319 total borrowers, with an outstanding loan
portfolio of INR 74,394.43 Lakhs. The paid-up share capital of the Company has increased from INR 12,882.18 Lakhs as
on 31st March 2017 to INR 35,382.18 Lakhs as on 31st March 2018 and the net worth of the Company has increased
from INR 12,238.43 Lakhs as on 31st March 2018 to INR 36,699.43 Lakhs.For future business prospect and for smooth
flow of business, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 27 th April 2018, also approved to increase its current
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Borrowing limits from INR 1,000 Crore to INR 2,000 Crore. Please refer Management Discussion and Analysis Report for
more information on the Company’s Business Overview.

4. DIVIDEND
With a view to conserve resources, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under review.

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
During the year under review, your Company transferred INR 627.65 Lakhs to the Statutory Reserve under Section 29C
of National Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987 out of the amount available for appropriation.

6. REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
There was no revision of Financial Statements during the year under review.

7. RESOURCE MOBILISATION
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued on private placement basis
During the financial year under review, your Company issued 2,500 Secured, Rated, Redeemable Non-convertible
Debentures having face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Twenty-Five Crores Only) on private placement basis.
Your Company also issued 1,000 (Series A – 500 and Series B – 500) Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable, Taxable,
Transferable, Listed Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis having face value of INR 10,00,000/ (Rupees Ten Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR 1,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crores Only) out of an issue of
2,000 Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable, Taxable, Transferable, Listed Non-Convertible Debentures (“proposed issue”)
having face value of INR 10,00,000/ - (Rupees Ten Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR 2,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred Crores Only) and which were subsequently listed on BSE Limited.
Debenture Trustee Agreement(s) were executed in favour of Milestone Trusteeship Services Private Limited; having its
registered office at 402 A, Hallmark Business Plaza, Sant Dnyaneshwar Marg, Opp. Guru Nanak Hospital Bandra (E),
Mumbai-400 051 (Tel No.: 022 6716 7000) on 19th May 2017 and 26th February 2018 respectively.
During the year under review, there were no Non-Convertible Debentures, which were claimed by the Investors or not
paid by the Company after the date on which the Non-Convertible Debentures became due for redemption. Also, there
was no amount in respect of the debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond the due date for redemption.

Refinance from National Housing Bank (NHB)
During the financial year under review, your Company has been granted a sanction amounting to INR 15 Crores by NHB
under the NHB’s refinancing schemes for Housing Finance Companies.

Credit Rating
During the year under review, following Credit Ratings has been assigned to the Company:
Rating/Outlook
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Nature of Borrowing

CRISIL Ratings

India Ratings
Research

Brickwork Ratings India Pvt
Ltd

Bank Loan Facility

CRISIL BBB+/Stable

IND A-/Stable

BWR A/Stable

Non-Convertible
Debentures

CRISIL BBB+/Stable

-

BWR A/Stable
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8. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

9. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR & THE DATE OF
REPORT:
There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of your Company, which have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company, i.e. 31st March, 2018 and the date of this Board’s Report i.e. 27th
April, 2018.

10. SHARE CAPITAL
On 21st July 2017, the Board allotted 2,25,00,000 Equity Shares on Right Issue basis.
Share Capital structure of the Company as on 31st March 2018 is as follows:

(INR in Lakhs)

Authorized Capital:
6,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 100/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up Share Capital:
35,382,180 Equity Shares of INR 100/- each

60,000.00
35,382.18

During the year under review the Company has neither issued sweat equity shares nor equity shares with differential
rights and as on 31st March 2018, none of the Directors of the Company hold convertible instruments of the Company.
During the Financial Year under review, the Company has not granted any Employee Stock Options to the employees of
the Company.

11. DETAILS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES
Pursuant to Section 2(46) of the Companies Act, 2013, Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited is the Holding Company of
the Company.
During the year under review, the Company did not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company and there
were no companies which became or ceased to be the Company’s Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company;
accordingly, reporting on the highlights of performance of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture companies and
their contribution to the overall performance of the Company during the period under report, is not required to be made.
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12. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Mr. Vijay Kumar (DIN: 01264590) was appointed as an
Additional Director in Independent capacity on the Board of
the Company, subject to members’ approval, with effect from
21st July, 2017. At the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the
members of the Company held on 16th January, 2018, Mr. Vijay
Kumar has been appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company with effect from 21st July, 2017 to hold office upto
31st March, 2022.
Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement dated 25th August,
2015, executed between Multiples Private Equity Fund II LLP,
Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited, Mr. Pramod Bhasin, Mr.
Vikram Gandhi and Mr. Samir Bhatia; Ms. Renuka Ramnath
(DIN: 00147182) has been designated as Chairperson on the
Board of the Company and as a Nominee Director of Plenty
Private Equity Fund I Limited with effect from 21st July, 2017
which was subsequently approved by the members at their
Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 16th January, 2018.
Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar (DIN: 00280010)
expressed his intention to discontinue as an Independent
Director on the Board of the Company and pursuant to the
above referred Shareholders’ Agreement was designated as a
Nominee Director of Multiples Private Equity Fund II LLP with
effect from 21st July, 2017.
Based on the confirmations received from all the Directors of
the Company, none of the Directors are disqualified for
appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Mr. Anil Gupta (Membership No. 45084), resigned from the
position of Company Secretary of the Company with effect
from 11th August 2017 and Ms. Pallavi Bhambere
(Membership No. A49763) was appointed as the Company
Secretary designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company with effect from 14th November 2017.
None of the Directors have resigned from the Company during
the year under review.

13. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY
THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
As required under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013,
declarations were received from Mr. Vijay Kumar, Mr.
Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar (upto 21st July 2017) and Mr.
G. S. Nayak, Independent Directors of the Company
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as
specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

14. DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted any deposits under Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year ended 31st March
2018.
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15. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGOING
As required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, the Company lays great emphasis on saving the cost of energy consumption. Therefore, effective measures have
been taken to check the loss of energy, as far as possible.
Technology Absorption is not applicable to the Company as the company is carrying on the business of providing long
term housing finance and term loans for non-housing purposes.
During the period under review, the foreign exchange earnings and out-go were as under:

(i) Foreign Exchange earnings
(ii) Foreign Exchange spent

– Nil
– Nil

16. DISCLOSURE AS TO REMUNERATION
The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016, forms part of this Board’s report which is as follows:

Requirements

Disclosure

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to
the median remuneration of the employees for the
financial year 2017-18.

Executive Director
Mr. Sandeep Menon – Managing Director - 48.70x

The percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer and Company Secretary in the financial
year 2017-18.

Executive Director
Mr. Sandeep Menon – Managing Director - 35%

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Renuka Ramnath – Nil
Mr. Sudhir Variyar – Nil
Mr. Samir Bhatia – Nil
Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar – Nil
Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak – Nil
Mr. Vijay Kumar – Nil

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Renuka Ramnath – Nil
Mr. Sudhir Variyar – Nil
Mr. Samir Bhatia – Nil
Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar – Nil
Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak – Nil
Mr. Vijay Kumar – Nil
Key Managerial Personnel other than Directors
Mr. Sujay Patil – Chief Financial Officer – 25%
Mr. Anil Gupta – Company Secretary – Nil
Ms. Pallavi Bhambere – Company Secretary – Nil

The percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the financial year

8%

Average percentile increases already made in the
salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration.

The median percentage increase made in the salaries
of employees other than the Key Managerial
Personnel was 8% while the median increase in the
salaries of Key Managerial Personnel was 15%. The
increase in the remuneration is in line with the
Company’s Performance appraisal policy.
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Requirements

Disclosure

The number of permanent employees on the rolls
of the Company.

461 (as on March 31, 2018)

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per
the Nomination (including Board’s Diversity),
Remuneration and Evaluation Policy of the Company.

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms part
of this report. However, as per first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and second proviso of Rule 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Report and Financial
Statements are being sent to the Members of the Company excluding the said statement. Any Member interested in
obtaining a copy of the said statement may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

17. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(14) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The Managing Director of the Company does not receive any remuneration or commission from the Holding Company
and accordingly, provision of Section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

18. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2018 is annexed herewith as “Annexure A”.

19. BOARD MEETINGS
4 (Four) Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2017-18. The Company held a minimum of one board
meeting in every quarter with a gap not exceeding 120 days (Maximum period permitted) between two consecutive
board meetings. The details of which are given as under:

Sr.
No.

Board Meeting date

Quarter

Number of days from
previous Board Meeting

1

27th April, 2017

April - June

71

2

21st July, 2017

July - September

84

3

14th November, 2017

October - December

105

4

21st February, 2018

January - March

91

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting

Sr. No.
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Name of Director

Board Meetings
held in Director’s
tenure

Attendance

Board Meeting

Annual General Meeting held
on 10th May, 2017

1

Ms. Renuka Ramnath

2

1

No

2

Mr. P. H. Ravikumar

4

4

Yes

3

Mr. Sandeep Menon

4

4

Yes

4

Mr. G S Nayak

4

4

No
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Sr. No.

Name of Director

Board Meetings
held in Director’s
tenure

Attendance

Board Meeting

Annual General Meeting held
on 10th May, 2017

5

Mr. Sudhir Variyar

4

4

No

6

Mr. Samir Bhatia

4

3

No

7

Mr. Vijay Kumar

2

1

No

20. AUDIT COMMITTEE
As on 31st March, 2018, the Audit Committee of the Company comprised of the following members:

a. Mr. Vijay Kumar – Non-Executive Independent Director
b. Mr. G S Nayak – Non-Executive Independent Director
c. Mr. P H Ravikumar – Non-Executive Director
The Audit Committee of the Company held 3 (Three) meetings during the financial 2017-18 on 27th April, 2017, 21st July,
2017 and 14th November, 2017 respectively. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee to the Board during
the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 were accepted by the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
attended the Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company held on 10th May, 2017.

Attendance of Directors at Audit Committee Meetings
Sr. No.

Name of Director

Audit Committee
Meetings held in
Member’s tenure

Attendance

1

Mr. P H Ravikumar

3

3

2

Mr. G S Nayak

3

3

3

Mr. Sudhir Variyar (upto 21st July 2017)

3

3

4

Mr. Vijay Kumar (w.e.f 21st July 2017)

1

1

21. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company held 3 (Three) meetings during the financial year 201718 on 27th April, 2017, 21st July, 2017 and 14th November, 2017 respectively. All the recommendations, made by the
Committee to the Board during the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 were accepted by the Board of Directors.

Attendance of Directors at Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings
Sr. No.

Name of Member

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meetings held in Member’s
tenure

1

Mr. P H Ravikumar

3

3

2

Mr. G S Nayak

3

3

3

Mr. Sudhir Variyar

3

3

4

Mr. Vijay Kumar
(w.e.f 21st July 2017)

1

1

Attendance
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
There are no material significant related party transactions made by the Company with the Promoters or Directors, etc.
which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company
at large. Transactions entered into with Related Parties as provided
in the Notes to Financial Statements did not attract the provisions
of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

23. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS AND
GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186
During the Financial Year 2017-18, the Company has not given any
loans or provided any guarantees in connection with loan falling
under the purview of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to any acquisition/ investment made in the ordinary course
of business are not applicable to Company since it is a Housing
Finance Company and exempted under Section 186(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

24. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY
The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal
controls to ensure that all its assets are safeguarded. Standardized
operating procedures, policies and guidelines, including regular
monitoring procedures and self-assessment exercises, are the
cornerstones of this important function.
The effectiveness of the internal control systems is continuously
monitored by the Internal Auditors and Corporate Audit
Department of the Company. The main function of the Internal
Auditors is to provide to the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors, an objective assurance of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the organization’s risk management control and
governance process.

25. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR
EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to
Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31st March, 2018.

26. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL RELATED TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company has in place adequate financial controls related to
financial statements and these financial controls are operating
effectively.
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27.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the Annual General Meeting held on 15th June, 2016, M/s. T. R.
Chadha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
006711N/N500028), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office for a period of 5 consecutive years i.e. till the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the year ending on 31st
March, 2021, subject to the ratification by the members at every
Annual General Meeting.
Accordingly, the appointment of M/s. T. R. Chadha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2018-19, will be placed for ratification
by the members and necessary proposal has been included in the
Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In this regard, M/s. T.
R. Chadha & Co LLP, have furnished a certificate of eligibility and
consent under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder confirming that the ratification of their
appointment, if made would be within the prescribed limits under the
Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified for the same.
The Auditors Report to the members for the year under review does
not contain any qualification and accordingly, explanations or
comments by the Board are not required to be provided.
Also, no frauds were reported by the Auditors in their report on the
Financial Statements of the Company under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

28. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:
The Board of the Company has adopted the Risk Management Policy
based on the recommendation of the Risk Management Committee
in order to assess, monitor and manage risk throughout the Company.
Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business, and sound risk
management is critical to the success of the organization.
Detailed information on risk management is provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

29. REMUNERATION POLICY:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director. The Remuneration Policy approved by
the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is annexed herewith as “Annexure B”.

30. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY (VIGIL MECHANISM)
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) & (10) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has in place a Whistle Blower
Policy, which provides for vigil mechanism that encourages and
supports its Directors and employees to report instances of illegal
activities, unethical behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation
of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. It also provides
for adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons who use this
mechanism and direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee
in exceptional cases.
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31. EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, IT’S COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS
The Board at its meeting held on 27th April, 2018 carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance as well as the
evaluation of the working of its Committees and individual Directors, including Chairman of the Board for the Financial Year
2017-18 and expressed its satisfaction as to their performance. This exercise was carried out through a structured
questionnaire prepared separately for Board, Committee and individual Directors. The questionnaire for Board evaluation
was prepared taking into consideration various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition and
role of the Board, Board meeting and reporting process, effectiveness of strategies, risk management systems, external
relationships, ethics and governance framework. Committee performance were evaluated on the basis of its composition,
effectiveness in carrying out its mandate, relevance of its recommendations and allocation of adequate time to fulfil its
mandate.

32. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(5) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013
In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013; the Directors state that to the best of their knowledge and belief
and according to the information and explanations obtained by them:
a)

That in the preparation of the annual accounts the applicable accounting standards been followed and there were
no material departures.

b)

That appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and have made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2018 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

c)

That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d)

That the annual accounts have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis.

e)

Those proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were
adequate and operating effectively.

33. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE
During the year under review, there have not been any significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators/Courts/Tribunals which will impact the going concern status and operations of the Company in future.
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34. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018 issued by M/s Pradeep Purwar & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries in the prescribed Form MR-3 does not contain any audit observations and accordingly,
explanations or comments by the Board are not required to be provided.

35. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
As per Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, details of remuneration of Mr. Sandeep Menon (DIN: 02032154),
Managing Director of the Company, are given hereunder:
(i) All elements of remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension, etc., of all the
directors.
Sr.No.

Particulars (Per annum)

Amount (INR in Lakhs)

1.

Basic Salary

60,00,000

2.

House Rent Allowance

30,00,000

3.

Medical

4.

Special Allowance

5.

Provident Fund Contribution

7,20,000

6.

Gratuity

2,88,600

7.

Petrol & Car Maintenance Reimbursement

7,00,000

8.

Driver Salary Reimbursement

8,00,000

9.

Leave Travel Allowance

15,000
34,26,400

50,000
Total

1,50,00,000

(ii) Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives along with the performance criteria;
a.

Fixed Component

: INR 1,50,00,000

b.

One-time Performance linked Incentive for FY 2016-17

: INR 1,00,80,000

(iii) Service contracts, notice period, severance fees:
N.A.

(iv) Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as the
period over which accrued and over which exercisable:
No ESOP issued during the year

36. THE NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED RELATING TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-18 AND THOSE PENDING AS ON THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013, the Company has a policy against sexual harassment and a formal process for dealing with complaints of harassment
of and / or discrimination against women and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in this regard.
The Company seeks to ensure that all such complaints are resolved within defined timelines. During the financial year
2017-18, no complaints of sexual harassment have been received by the Company.
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37. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your directors place on record gratitude to the regulator National Housing Bank, the Company ‘s banker, the Govt.
Authorities, Clients of the Company, the Staff Members and stakeholders of the Company for extending valuable
support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April, 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Form No. MGT-9
1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN

U65922MH2005PLC272501

Registration Date

04/02/2005

Name of the Company

VASTU HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Company limited by shares/Indian Non-Government company

Address of the Registered Office and contact
details

Unit Nos. 203 & 204, 2nd Floor, A wing, Navbharat Estates, Zakaria
Bunder Road, Sewri (West) Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 015

Whether listed company

Phone:
022-02419
0911
Debt
Listed
Company

Name, address and contact details of Registrar BigShare Services Private Limited
and Transfer Agent, if any
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road,
Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400 059
Contact Person: Mr. Babu Rapheal
Tel No: 022- 6263 8200; Fax No: 022- 6263 8299
Email:babu@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com

2. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: Sr.
No.
1.

Name and Description of main
Products / Services

NIC Code of the Product/Service

Financial intermediation except
Insurance and Pension Funding

% to total turnover of the
Company

64990

100.00

3. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
Sr.
No.

Name and address of the Company

CIN / GLN

1

Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited

NA

Holding/ Subsidiary/
Associate
Holding

% of shares
held
77.13

Applicable
Section
2(46)

Address: 1st Floor, 78 Saint Jean
Road, Quatre-Bornes, Mauritius
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4. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i. Category-wise Share Holding
Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
Demat

Physical

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% of
Total
Shares

Total

A. Promoters

Demat

Physical

% of Total
Share

Total

% of
Change
During
the year

1) Indian
a) Individual / HUF

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Central Govt.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c) State Govt.(s)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) Bodies Corporate

-

-

-

-

e) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

f) Any Other….

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-Total (A)(1):

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

a) NRIs - Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Other – Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c) Bodies Corporate

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e) Any Other….

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-Total (A)(2):

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total Shareholding of Promoters (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

a) Mutual Funds / UTI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c) Central Govt.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) State Govt.(s)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e) Venture Capital Funds

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

f) Insurance Companies

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

g) FIIs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

i) Others (specify)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-Total (B)(1):

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(2) Foreign

B. Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions

(2) Non- Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate

i) Indian

17,75,626

-

17,75,626

13.78

30,45,664

1,00,000

31,45,664

8.89

-4.89

ii) Overseas

92,16,581

-

92,16,581

71.55

2,72,90,421

3,20,000

2,76,10,421

78.03

+6.48

i) Individual Shareholders holding nominal
share capital upto Rs. 1 Lakh

-

-

-

-

5,4731

2,14,552

2,69,283

0.76

+0.76

ii) Individual Shareholders holding nominal
share capital in excess of Rs. 1 Lakh
c) Other (Specify)

5,17,687

9,28,532

14,46,219

11.22

11,47,219

21,46,291

32,93,510

9.31

-1.91

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

i) Non-Resident (Non-Rep)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

ii) Non-Resident (Rep)

-

4,43,754

4,43,754

3.44

1,01,770

9,61,532

10,63,302

3.01

-0.43

iii) Trust

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

iv) OCB

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

v) Clearing Members

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-Total (B)(2):

1,15,09,894

13,72,286

1,28,82,180

100

3,15,38,035

38,44,145

3,53,82,180

100

Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B)(1) +(B)(2)

1,15,09,894

13,72,286

1,28,82,180

100

3,15,38,035

38,44,145

3,53,82,180

100

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,15,09,894

13,72,286

1,28,82,180

100

3,15,38,035

38,44,145

3,53,82,180

100

-

b) Individual

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C)
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters – Not Applicable
Shareholders
Name

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year (01.04.2017)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(31.03.2018)

% of
Change in
share
holding
during
the year

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the
Company

% of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the
Company

% of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding - Not Applicable
Shareholding At the beginning of
the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares

% of total
shares of the
Company

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of
the Company

-

-

-

-

At the beginning of the year (01.04.2017)
Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease
(e.g.allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc):
At the end of the year (31.03.2018)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs)
Sr.
No

1.

2.

Name

Shareholding

Date

Reason

Decrease in
shareholding

Plenty Private
Equity Fund I
Limited

Multiples Private
Equity Fund II LLP

No. of Shares
at the
beginning
(01.4.2017) /
end of the year
(31.03.2018)

% of total
shares of
the
Company

92,16,581

71.55

Mr. Pramod Bhasin

Cumulative shareholding
during the year
01.04.2017-31.03.2018
No. of shares

% of
total
shares
of the
Company

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

27,290,421

77.13

31.03.2018

17,75,626

13.78

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

3.

Increase/

30,45,664

8.61

31.03.2018

8,03,065

6.23

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

18,073,840

Allotment

27,290,421

77.13

12,70,038

Allotment

30,45,664

8.61

8,00,000

Allotment

16,03,065

4.53
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4.

Mr. Vikram Gandhi

16,03,065

4.53

31.03.2018

4,11,532

3.19

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

5.

Mr. Puranam
Srikanth

9,61,532

2.72

31.03.2018

32,222

0.25

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

6.

Mr. BD Narang

1,01,770

0.29

31.03.2018

1,00,000

0.78

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

7.

Ms. Malavika
Tiwari

2,00,000

0.57

31.03.2018

-

-

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

8.

Sea Shell Limited

2,00,000

0.57

31.03.2018

-

-

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

3,20,000

0.90

5,50,000

Allotment

9,61,532

2.72

69,548

Allotment

1,01,770

0.29

1,00,000

Allotment

2,00,000

0.57

2,00,000

Allotment

2,00,000

0.57

3,20,000

Allotment

3,20,000

0.90

Increase/
Decrease
in share
holding

Reason

31.03.2018

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sr.
No
.

Name

Shareholding

No. of Shares
at the
beginning
(01.4.2017) /
end of the
year
(31.03.2018)

Date

Cumulative
shareholding during
the year
01.04.2017-31.03.2018

% of total
shares of
the
Company

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of
the
Company

A. Directors
40,592

0.31

01.04.2017

-

31.07.2017

14,139

Allotment

54,731

0.15

1,02,634

Allotment

1,43,226

0.40

Mr. P.H. Ravikumar
1.

2.

Non-Executive
Nominee Director
54,731

0.15

31.03.2018

40,592

0.31

01.04.2017

Mr. Sandeep
Menon Managing
Director

31.07.2017
1,43,226

38
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417,687
3.

3.24

Mr. Samir Bhatia
Director

01.04.2017
31.07.2017

11,47,219

3.24

31.03.2018

44,283

0.34

01.04.2017

7,29,532

Allotment

11,47,21
9

3.24

45,000

Allotment

89,283

0.25

B. Key Managerial Personnel

1.

Mr. Sujay Patil
Chief Financial
Officer

31.07.2017
89,283

0.25

31.03.2018

Note: - Apart from above mentioned Directors remaining Directors did not hold any shares of the
Company during the year under review.

5. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:
(INR in Lakhs)
Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i. Principal Amount

8,208.72

-

-

8,208.72

-

-

-

-

5.30

-

-

5.30

8,214.02

-

-

8,214.02

42,100.00

-

-

42,100.00

2,780.63

-

-

2,780.63

Net Change

39,319.37

-

-

39,319.37

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

47,528.09

-

-

47,528.09

i. Principal Amount

47,528.09

-

-

47,528.09

-

-

-

-

147.22

-

-

147.22

47,675.31

-

-

47,675.31

ii. Interest due but not paid
iii. Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ ii+ iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition
Reduction

ii. Interest due but not paid
iii. Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ ii+ iii)
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6. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
The Company has only one Managing Director, Mr. Sandeep Menon.
(INR in lakhs)
Sr.
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Managing
Director

Total
Amount

Mr. Sandeep
Menon
1

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961

250.80

250.80

(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961

-

-

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961

-

-

2

Stock Options

-

-

3

Sweat Equity

-

-

4

Commission
- as % of profit

-

-

- others, specify….

-

-

Others, please specify

-

-

250.80

250.80

5

Total (A)
Ceiling as per Act

40
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B. Remuneration to other Directors:
(INR in lakhs)
Sr.
No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Independent Directors
Mr. Vijay
Kumar

1

Mr. Girija
Shankar
Nayak

Mr.
Puranam
Hayagreeva
Ravikumar

Ms.
Renuka
Ramnath

Mr.
Sudhir
Variyar

Mr.
Samir
Bhatia

-

-

2.12

Independent
Director
-Fee for attending
Board / Committee
Meetings

-

Commission
- Others,
specify

2

Total
Amount

Other Non-Executive Directors

please

0.90

1.22

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total (1)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other Non Executive Directors

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-Fee for attending
Board / Committee
Meetings

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Commission

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Others, please
specify

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total (2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total B= 1+2

-

0.90

1.22

-

-

-

2.12

Total
Managerial
Remuneration

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Overall Ceiling as per Act
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD
(INR in lakhs)
Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel
Company
Secretary- Mr. Anil
Gupta
(Up to Aug2017)

1.

Company Secretary –
Ms. Pallavi Bhambere
(w.e.f. Sept 2017)

CFO –
Mr. Sujay
Patil

Total

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in Section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

2.10

129.00

131.94

(b) Value of perquisites under
Section 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

2

Stock Options

-

-

-

3

Sweat Equity

-

-

-

4

Commission
- as % of profit

-

-

-

- Others, specify

-

-

-

Others, please specify

-

-

-

2.10

129.00

131.94

5

Total

42
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7. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type

Section of
the
Companies
Act

Brief Description

Details of Penalties/
Punishment/
Compounding Fees
imposed

Authority
[ RD/ NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal
made, if
any (give
details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment

None

Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment

None

Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICER IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment

None

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April, 2018

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
DIN: 00147182
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ANNEXURE B TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
I.INTRODUCTION:
The Board of Directors approved the Remuneration Policy on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The salient aspects of the Policy are outlined below:
The objective of this Policy, inter-alia, is to ensure that the Company

a) attracts, recruits and retain good and exceptional talent;
b) list down the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
the directors of the Company;
c) ensure that the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is
performance driven, motivates them, recognizes their merits and achievements and promotes
excellence in their performance;
d) motivate such personnel to align their individual interests with the interests of the Company and
further the interests of its stakeholders;
e) ensure a transparent nomination process for directors with the diversity of thought, experience,
knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board; and
f) fulfill the Company's objectives and goals, including in relation to good corporate governance,
transparency and sustained long-term value creation for its stakeholders.

II. NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF (A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (B) NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (C) INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND (D) KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
The Committee to identify and recommend to the Board of Directors of the Company person(s) who is qualified and
eligible for appointment as the Executive Director, Non-Executive Director and Independent Director. The appointment
of the Directors to be approved by the Board subject to approval of the shareholders and also Central Government as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.
The Committee to recommend to the Board the nomination of Key Managerial Personnel. The appointment of Key
Managerial Personnel to be approved by Board and shareholders, if necessary. The Company to issue a letter of
appointment to the Key Managerial Personnel.

III. EVALUATION:
The reappointment or extension of term and the remuneration of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors will be
as per the performance evaluation report pursuant to the performance evaluation carried out by the Board (excluding the
director being evaluated). The criteria for such performance evaluation shall be determined by the Committee and the
Board.
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IV. REMUNERATION:
A. Executive Directors:
1. The Committee to recommend the remuneration of the Executive Directors to the Board for its
approval subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company and the Central Government,
if required.

B. Non-Executive Directors:
1.

The Committee to recommend the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors to the Board for its approval, and
will be subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company, if required.

2. The Non-Executive Directors will be paid sitting fees of such amounts as may be determined from time to time and
upto such amount, as may be decided by the Board.

C. Independent Directors:
1.
2.

D.
1.
2.
3.

The Committee to recommend the remuneration of the Independent Directors to the Board for its approval, and will
be subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company.
The Independent Directors will be paid sitting fees of such amounts as may be determined from time to time and
upto such amount, as may be decided by the Board and the shareholders, if required.

Key Managerial Personnel:
The Committee to recommend the remuneration of the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer to the Board
for its approval.
Increment for each year will be determined by the Committee based on the performance evaluation report.
Such increment will be subject to the approval of the Board.

E. Employees:
1.

The Committee to determine the remuneration of the employees of the Company other than whole time key
managerial personnel. Increment for each year will be determined by the Committee based on the performance
evaluation conducted.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April, 2018

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
DIN: 00147182
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents)

Regulations,

1993

regarding

the

Companies

Act,

2013

and

dealing

with

client;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
and

(c) The

Securities
Regulations, 2008.

(vi)

and

Exchange

Board

of

India (Issue and Listing of debt securities)

The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions,
2010, being special act governing the Company, as the Company is a Housing Finance
Company.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(a)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, and

(b)

The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

Provisions of the following Acts, Regulations and Guidelines were not applicable to the Company under the financial year
under report:
(a)
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(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards etc. as mentioned above, to the extent applicable.
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period:

(i) 22,500,000 Equity Shares of INR 100/- each were issued for Cash at Par to the existing Equity Shareholders of the
Company on Rights basis pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 by passing of a
Board Resolution on 27th April, 2017 and 22,500,000 Equity Shares of INR 100/- each were allotted on 21st July,
2017;

(ii) The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from INR 135 Crores to INR 600 Crores and consequently,
the Capital Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company was altered by passing of a Special Resolution
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 10th May, 2017;

(iii) The borrowing limit of the Company was increased from INR 250 Crores to INR 1,000 Crores pursuant to the
provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, by passing of a Special Resolution the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 10th May, 2017;

(iv) Authority to create charge on the properties of the Company not exceeding INR 1,000 Crores pursuant to the
provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, was accorded to the Board of Directors by passing of a
Special Resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 10th May, 2017;

(v) Authority to raise funds through Private Placement of Unsecured/ Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures/ Bonds pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42 & 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 for an amount not
exceeding INR 500 Crores, in or more tranches during the period of one year from the date of resolution was accorded
to the Board of Directors/ Committee, by passing of a Special Resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 10th May, 2017;

(vi) The remuneration payable to Mr. Sandeep Menon (DIN: 02032154), Managing Director of the Company was revised
with effect from 1st April, 2017 pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013, by passing of a Special Resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 10th
May, 2017;

(vii) Mr. Hayagreeva Ravikumar Puranam (DIN: 00280010), Independent Director was re- designated as a Non-Executive
Nominee Director of Multiples Private Equity Fund II LLP on the Board of the Company with effect from 21st July,
2017;
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(viii) Ms. Renuka Ramnath (DIN: 00147182) was appointed as a Nominee Director of Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited
on the Board of the Company as well as the Chairperson of the Company with effect from 21st July, 2017 and approval
of the shareholders was received at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 16th January, 2018;

(ix) Mr. Vijay Kumar (DIN: 01264590) was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company with effect
from 21st July, 2017 to hold office upto 31st March, 2022 and approval of the shareholders was received at their
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 16th January, 2018;

(x) 500, 9.95% Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable, Taxable, Transferable, Listed Series A - Non-Convertible Debentures
of INR 10 Lakh each were allotted to Franklin India Short Term Income Plan and Franklin India Income Opportunities
Fund on Private Placement basis on 27th February, 2018; which were subsequently listed on BSE Limited with effect
from 12th March, 2018.

(xi) The Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 and grant of employee stock options to the employees of the Company
thereunder was approved by the shareholders by passing of a Special Resolution at their Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting held on 23rd March, 2018;

(xii) Trust Route for implementation of the Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 was approved by the
shareholders by passing of a Special Resolution at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on
23rd March, 2018; and

(xiii) 500, 9.95% Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable, Taxable, Transferable, Listed Series B - Non-Convertible Debentures
of INR 10 Lakh each were allotted to Franklin India Short Term Income Plan on Private Placement basis on 28th March,
2018; which were subsequently listed on BSE Limited on 12th April, 2018.

For Pradeep Purwar & Associates
Company Secretaries

Pradeep Kumar Purwar
Proprietor
Place: Thane
Date: 27th April, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The members of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. , relevant circulars and directions issued by the National Housing Board from
time to time as applicable to the company. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018,
and its Profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.
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2.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, the Company has kept proper books of account as required by law so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2O14 as amended by Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2017, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.
ii.

iii.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.
There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 006711N/N500028

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April 2018
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Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report
The annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the member of the Company on the financial statement for the
year ended 31st March 2018, we report that;

(i) Fixed Assets
a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situtation of its
fixed assets.

b) As per the explanation and information given to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
in phased manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size & nature of the company. No material
discrepancies were noted on such verification.

c) According to the informations and explanations given to us, the title deed of the immovable property are held in the
name of the Company.

(ii) Inventories
The nature of business of the company does not require to have any inventory. Hence, the requirement of clause (ii)
of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the company.

(iii) Loans given
The Company has not granted any Secured or unsecured loan to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under
clause 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) does not arise.

(iv) Compliance of Sec. 185 & 186
According to the informations and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any transaction in
respect of loans, investments, guarantee and security which attracts compliance to provisions of section 185 & 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(v) Public Deposit
During the year, the company has not accepted any deposits from the public, therefore, paragraph 3 (v) of the order is
not applicable.

(vi) Cost Records
As informed to us, the central government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Act in respect of business of the company.

(vii) Statutory Dues
a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, the Company has generally been regular in depositing its undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees State insurance, income-tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Goods and Services tax, value
added tax, cess and Entertainment Tax etc. There are no undisputed dues payable, outstanding as on 31st March,
2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts in respect of income tax, service
tax etc. that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined by us,
the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institutions, banks etc.

(ix)

The company has applied the amount raised by it by way of term loans, debt instruments for the purpose for which
those loans were obtained except parking of the funds amounting to Rs. 19772 Lakh in fixed deposits pending
utilization. The company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer during the year.

(x)

According to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud on the Company or any fraud on the
company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)

According to information & explanations given to us, managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(xii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)

As per the information and explanations given by the management, all the transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv)

As per the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transaction with directors or persons connected with him. Therefore paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to
the company.

(xvi)

As per the information and explanations given by the management, company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore paragraph 3 (xvi) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 006711N/N500028

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April 2018
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Annexure B to the Auditor’s Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on, “the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018,
based on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 006711N/N500028

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April 2018
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2018
Particulars

Notes

As at 31-March-18

(INR in Lakhs)
As at 31-March-17

I
1
a
b

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

3
4

35,382.18
1,317.25
36,699.43

12,882.18
(643.75)
12,238.43

2
a
b
c

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax Liability (net)
Long-term provisions

5
10
6

40,495.00
45.68
504.02
41,044.70

6,881.39
93.34
6,974.73

3
a
b
c

Current liabilities
Current maturities of long term borrowings
Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

5
7
6

7,033.09
11,293.86
11.88
18,338.83
96,082.97

1,327.33
5,099.08
1.97
6,428.38
25,641.54

8
9
10
11
11

93.48
22.24
167.59
72,577.37

43.00
25.95
6.13
106.37
19,654.91

72,860.68

19,836.36

11
11

26.88
1,817.06

16.84
483.97

12
13

20,524.33
854.02
23,222.29
96,082.97

5,087.60
216.77
5,805.18
25,641.54

TOTAL
II
1
a

b
c
d

2
a
b
c
d

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax asset (net)
Long-term loans and advances
Long-term loans and advances towards financing
activities
Current assets
Short-term loans and advances
Current Maturities of Long-term loans towards
financing activities
Cash and bank balances
Other current assets
TOTAL

Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory 1 to 22.29
Statements forming integral part of the Audited
Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants
Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363
Date : 27th April 2018
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

Sandeep Menon
Manging Director

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Officer
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018
Particulars

I
a
b

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue (I = a + b)

II
a
b
c
d
e

Expenses
Employee benefit expenses
Finance costs
Other expenses
Depreciation and amortization expense
Provisions and write-offs
Total expenses (II = a+b+c+d+e)
Profit before tax (III = I - II )

III
IV
a
b
V

Notes

Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory
Statements forming integral part of the Audited Financial
Statements

(INR in Lakhs)
31-Mar-17

14
15

7,378.51
2,121.85
9,500.36

1,603.93
594.81
2,198.74

16
17
18
19
20

2,707.66
2,054.63
1,546.74
59.89
381.14
6,750.06
2,750.30

1,223.65
105.72
621.94
23.93
170.00
2,145.24
53.50

737.48
51.82
789.29
1,961.01

13.97
(6.13)
7.84
45.66

100.00
7.02

100.00
0.43

Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax
Total tax expense (IV = a + b)
Profit for the year (V = III - IV)
Earnings per equity share
Nominal value per equity share (Rs.)
Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.)

31-Mar-18

21
1 to 22.29

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants
Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363
Date : 27th April 2018
Place : Mumbai
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
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Company Secretary

Sandeep Menon
Manging Director
Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Officer
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Cash flow statement for the year April 01,2017 to March 31, 2018
Particulars

For the year
Apr 01, 2017 to
March 31, 2018

(INR in Lakhs)
For the year
Apr 01, 2016 to
March 31, 2017

2,750.30

53.50

(617.56)
59.89
2,192.63

(213.92)
23.93
(633.30)
(769.79)

420.59
6,194.78
(39.42)
(10.04)
(637.25)

86.10
4,841.61
(36.21)
(13.89)
(174.64)

8,121.29

3,933.18

(A)

(54,255.55)
(759.28)
(46,893.54)

(17,655.56)
(30.52)
(13,752.90)

(B)

617.56
(106.66)
510.90

213.92
(55.89)
158.03

C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Rights Issue
Borrowings during the period (Net)
Net cash generated from / (used in) from Financing Activities

(C)

22,500.00
39,319.37
61,819.37

6,100.00
8,208.72
14,308.72

Net (Decrease) /Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent

(A+B+C)

15,436.73

713.86

5,066.60

4,352.74

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

20,503.33

5,066.60

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the year end
Cash on hand
Deposits with original Maturity of less than 3 months
Deposits with original Maturity of more than 3 months
With Banks - on current account
Total

8.34
19,751.00
743.99
20,503.33

7.51
4,757.00
302.09
5,066.60

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before Taxation
Adjustments for:
Income from fixed deposits with banks
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for Non Performing assets / (Write backs)
Operating profit/(Loss) before working capital changes
Movements in Working Capital:
Increase/(decrease) in Long/Short term provision
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in long term loans and advances
Decrease/(increase) in short term loans and advances
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets
Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Housing and other Property Loan Disbursed (Net)
Direct taxes paid (Including TDS)
Net cash flows from Operating Activities
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Income from fixed deposits with banks
Purchase of fixed assets
Net cash generated from / (used in) Investing Activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

As per our report of even date attached
For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

Date : 27th April 2018
Place : Mumbai

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sandeep Menon
Manging Director
Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Officer
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year April 1, 2017 to March 31, 201

(INR in Lakhs)

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

60,000.00

13,500.00

353,82,180 (March 31, 2017 : 128,82,180) Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid

35,382.18

12,882.18

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

35,382.18

12,882.18

3. Share capital
Authorized shares
6,00,00,000 (March 31, 2017 : 1,35,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

No. of Shares

Amount

No. of Shares

Amount

At the beginning of the year

1,28,82,180

12,882.18

67,82,180

6,782.18

Issued during the year- Fresh Issue

2,25,00,000

22,500.00

61,00,000

6,100.00

3,53,82,180

35,382.18

1,28,82,180

12,882.18

Outstanding at the end of the year
(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/
associates are as below:

31-Mar-18

Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited

31-Mar-17

No. of Shares

%

No. of Shares

%

2,72,90,421

77.13%

92,16,581

71.55%

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of Rs.100 each fully paid

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

No. of Shares

% holding in
the class

No. of Shares

% holding
in the class

Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited

2,72,90,421

77.13%

92,16,581

71.55%

Multiples Private Equity Fund II LLP

30,45,664

8.61%

17,75,626

13.78%

Pramod Bhasin

16,03,065

4.53%

8,03,065

6.23%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018

(INR in Lakhs)

31-Mar-18

4. Reserves and surplus
Statutory reserve / Special Reserve
(In terms of Section 36(1)(vii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 read with Section 29C
of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.)
Balance as per the last financial statements
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and loss
Closing Balance
General Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements
Add: Amount transferred from Revaluation Reserve
Closing Balance
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements
Add: Net Profit for the year
Less: Transfer to statutory / special reserve
Net surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Total reserves and surplus

5. Long-term borrowings
Refinance from National Housing Bank
Secured*
Term loans from Banks
Secured*
Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures
10.35% Secured **
9.95% Secured **
Term loans from Others
Secured*

Non-current portion
31-Mar-18
31-Mar-17

31-Mar-17

77.59
550.06
627.65

68.09
9.50
77.59

111.99
111.99

111.99
111.99

(833.34)
1,961.01
(550.06)
577.61
1,317.25

(869.50)
45.66
(9.50)
(833.34)
(643.75)

Current maturities
31-Mar-18
31-Mar-17

1,383.90

-

116.10

-

11,638.63

2,740.79

3,588.57

467.93

1,923.08
10,000.00

-

576.92
-

-

15,549.39
40,495.00

4,140.60
6,881.39

2,751.50
7,033.09

859.40
1,327.33

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings
30,495.00
6,881.39
7,033.09
1,327.33
Unsecured borrowings
10,000.00
Total amount
40,495.00
6,881.39
7,033.09
1,327.33
Maturity profile and Terms
Maturities
1 - 3 years
3 - 5 Years
> 5 Years
Total
Rate of Interest
9.95% - 10.35% - NCD
2,115.38
384.62
10,000.00
12,500.00
8.4% - 11% - Others
22,927.84
11,125.95
974.30
35,028.09
* Term loans facilities from banks and others are secured by way exclusive first charge and hypothecation of specific
loan receivables.
** All redeemable non-convertible debentures are secured by
1. Exclusive first charge on specific receivable of the company and
2. On a pari passu basis by a first ranking charge by way of legal mortgage on the premises situated at Coimbatore in
the state of Tamil Nadu.
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(INR in Lakhs)

Long-term

6. Provisions

31-Mar-18

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity
Provision for standard assets
Others (Provision for standard assets)

Short-term

31-Mar-17

31-Mar-18

33.01
33.01

14.74
14.74

0.09
0.09

0.03
0.03

471.01
471.01
504.02

78.60
78.60
93.34

11.79
11.79
11.88

1.94
1.94
1.97

31-Mar-18

7. Other current liabilities
Outstanding liabilities
Bank balance (Book overdraft)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Insurance Payable on behalf of Customers
Employee benefits payable
Statutory Dues payable
Installments received in advance and others
Other liabilities

(i). Asset for own use
Premises
Office equipments
Furniture and Fittings
Leasehold Improvements
Computers
Total

60

Depreciation

601.88
4,247.07
5.30
50.82
5.39
27.77
160.85
5,099.08
Net Block

Addition Disposal
Disposal
As on
As on
As on
As on
As on
As on
during during
For the during
April 01,
March April 01,
March March March
the
the
year
the
2017
31, 2018 2017
31, 2018 31, 2018 31, 2017
period Period
Period

8. Tangible assets

Computer software
Total

31-Mar-17

1,041.02
9,378.00
147.22
165.38
18.18
130.54
395.73
17.79
11,293.86

Gross Block (at cost)

9. Intangible
assets

31-Mar-17

2.21
7.03
6.57
43.14
58.95

10.25
10.02
11.44
64.08
95.78

-

10.25
12.22
18.47
6.57
107.22
154.73

0.29
5.23
1.19
9.23
15.95

1.62
1.82
3.13
2.08
36.66
45.31

-

20,386,085

8,814,487

Gross Block (at cost)

Amortisation

1.62
2.11
8.37
3.27
45.88
61.26

8.63
10.11
10.11
3.30
61.34
93.48

1.91
1.80
5.37
33.91
43.00

Net Block

Addition Disposal
Disposal
As on
As on
As on
As on
As on
As on
during
during
For the during
April 01,
March 31, April 01,
March
March
March
the
the
year
the
2017
2018
2017
31, 2018 31, 2018 31, 2017
period
Period
Period

38.25
38.25

10.88
10.88

-

49.13
49.13

12.30
12.30

14.58
14.58

-

26.89
26.89

22.24
22.24

25.95
25.95
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Notes to the financial statements for the period April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017
Gross Block (at cost)

Depreciation

Net Block

Addition Disposal
Disposal
As on
As on
As on
As on
As on As on
during during
For the during
April 01,
March April 01,
March March March
the
the
year
the
2016
31, 2017 2016
31, 2017 31, 2017 31, 2016
period Period
Period

8. Tangible assets

(i). Asset for own use
Premises
Vehicles
Office equipments
Furniture and Fittings
Leasehold Improvements
Computers
Total

300.30
24.85
12.24
15.45
36.35
389.19

0.56
1.00
12.79
14.35

300.30
24.85
12.24
15.45
36.35
389.19

0.56
1.00
12.79
14.34

17.42
23.08
10.40
13.49
36.21
100.60

Gross Block (at cost)

9. Intangible
assets

(INR in Lakhs)

-

26.98
26.98

-

18.29
24.54
10.98
14.22
36.21
104.24

0.09
0.13
1.10
1.32

- 282.88
1.77
0.47
1.84
0.87
1.96
11.68
0.14
13.02 288.59

Amortisation

As on Addition Disposal
As on
As on
April
during during
March 31, April 01,
01,
the
the
2017
2016
2016
period Period

Computer software
Total

0.87
1.46
0.67
0.86
1.10
4.96

26.98
26.98

-

Net Block

Disposal
As on
As on
As on
during
March March March 31,
the
31, 2017 31, 2017
2016
Period

For
the
year
3.00
3.00

10. Deferred tax asset (net)

-

3.00
3.00

23.98
23.98

31-Mar-18

Deferred tax liabilities
Amount transferred to Special Reserve
Accrelarated Depreciation
Total Deferred tax Liability
Deferred tax assets
Provisions for performing / non-performing assets*
Total Deferred tax asset
Net Deferred tax asset / (Liability)

31-Mar-18

A. Loans (Secured, considered good) @
Secured Performing Assets * #
Housing Loans - Individuals
Loan Against Property

31-Mar-17

31-Mar-17

172.93
14.90
187.83

26.85
26.85

142.15
142.15
(45.68)

32.98
32.98
6.13

Non-current

11. Loans and advances

-

Current
31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

48,022.08
24,555.29
72,577.37

13,599.12
6,055.79
19,654.91

1,053.41
763.65
1,817.06

307.70
176.27
483.97

(I)

72,577.37

19,654.91

1,817.06

483.97

(II)
A (I-II)

72,577.37

19,654.91

1,817.06

483.97

Non Performing Assets **
Housing Loans - Individuals

Less: Provision for Non Performing Assets
Housing Loans - Individuals
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(INR in Lakhs)

* Represents standard assets in accordance with NHB's Directions for asset classification
** Represents non-performing assets in accordance with NHB's Directions for asset classification
# Loans are secured by any or all of the following as applicable, based on their categoriation:
a) Equitable / Registered Mortgage of Property.
b) Undertaking to create a security.
c) The personal guarantees of borrowers.
B. Security Deposits (Unsecured, considered good)
Rent & other Deposits
C. Others
Unsecured, considered good
Advance for Expenses
Advance income tax (net of provision)
Other Loans and Advances (B+C)
Total Loans and Advances (A+B+C)

93.29
93.29

53.87
53.87

-

-

74.30
74.30
167.59

52.50
52.50
106.37

26.88
26.88
26.88

16.84
16.84
16.84

72,744.96

19,761.28

1,843.94

500.81

@ Includes loans under on going cheque handover post completion of disbursement process but under security creation

Current

12. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts
Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with maturity of less than 12 months
Cash and bank balances

13. Other current assets
Interest accrued but not due on portfolio loans
Interest accrued but not due on deposits placed with banks
Others Receivable (overdue receivable on loans etc.)

14. Revenue from operations
Interest income
Interest on housing and other loans
Other operating revenue
Fees and other charges
Others

15. Other income
Income from fixed deposits with bank
Income from Display of Advertisement
Training Development and Consultancy Charges
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31-Mar-18

743.99
19,751.00
8.34
20,503.33
21.00
20,524.33
31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

302.09
4,757.00
7.51
5,066.60
21.00
5,087.60
31-Mar-17

773.83
52.74
27.45
854.02

211.03
3.70
2.04
216.77

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

5,956.87

1,161.33

1,401.39
20.25
7,378.51

442.60
1,603.93

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

617.56
1,400.64
76.00

213.92
380.35
-
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Provision for expenses no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income

16. Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, bonus etc.
Contribution to provident fund
Contribution to ESIC
Gratuity
Staff welfare expenses

17. Finance costs
Interest
On term loans
On Cash Credit
Bank charges and others

18. Other expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Telephone expenses
Postage and courier expenses
Advertisement and business promotion
Repairs and maintenance - others
Rent, rates and taxes
Electricity charges
Insurance charges
Payment to Auditors' (refer details below)
Professional and legal fees
Loan sourcing cost
Application processing expenses
Computer maintenance
Commission and Brokerage
ROC Fees and Stamp Duty
Miscellaneous expenses (indirect tax reversal, admin exp. etc.)
Director Sitting fees
As auditor:
Audit fees
In other capacity:
Tax Audit
Certification and other services
Out of Pocket Expenses

19. Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation of fixed assets

27.63
0.02
2,121.85

0.54
594.81

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

2,565.71
92.79
14.48
18.04
16.64
2,707.66

1,162.26
40.02
1.94
12.40
7.03
1,223.65

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

1,965.12
0.77
88.74
2,054.63

76.62
0.27
28.83
105.72

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

26.75
50.75
6.58
27.71
13.40
33.91
174.60
25.24
28.59
15.75
217.44
257.43
323.81
37.44
8.55
194.92
101.45
2.42
1,546.74

32.06
9.98
2.61
13.11
12.33
75.15
9.70
4.87
8.12
82.61
172.12
120.42
15.49
54.48
0.16
7.22
1.51
621.94

13.00

6.00

0.75
2.00
15.75

0.75
1.25
0.12
8.12

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

59.89
59.89

23.93
23.93
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20. Provisions and write-offs
Contingent provision against standard assets
Provision for non-performing assets / (write backs)
Recovery against loans written off
Bad debts written off - housing and other loans

(INR in Lakhs)
31-Mar-18
31-Mar-17
402.27
(21.18)
0.05
381.14

73.59
(633.31)
(5.02)
734.74
170.00

21. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS
Effect of dilution:
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS
Nominal Value per share
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.)
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31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

1,961.01
1,961.01
No. of shares
2,79,23,276

45.66
45.66
No. of shares
1,07,26,290

2,79,23,276
100
7.02

1,07,26,290
100
0.43
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018
1. Corporate Information
Vastu Housing Finance Limited ('the Company') is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in the business of disbursing loans against the security
of house property to meet housing and other requirements of the borrowers. The Company is registered with the National
Housing Bank as Non Deposit taking Housing Finance Company (HFC).

2. Basis for preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the
accounting standards notified by Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the provision of Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the provisions of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the Housing Finance Companies,
(NHB) Directions, 2010 as amended from time to time. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis
and under the historical cost convention except interest on loans which have been classified as non-performing assets
and are accounted for on realisation basis.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year.

Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles
followed by the Company.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1.1 Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

2.1.2 Cash flow Statements
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated and profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments

2.1.3 Property, Plant & Equipment
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.
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2.1.4

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives
estimated by the management, or those prescribed under the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is
higher. Leasehold Improvements have been amortised over the period of Lease.
Fixed assets costing upto Rs.5,000 individually are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

2.1.5 Intangible Assets and amortization
Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over a period of 3 years.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

2.1.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

2.1.7 Investments
Investments which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date on which such
investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments. Current investments are carried in the financial statement at lower of cost and fair value determined on an
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is
made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments. On disposal of an investment, the
difference between the carrying amount and disposal proceeds are charged or credited to the statement of profit and
loss.

2.1.8 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.
i. Interest income / fees on housing and other loans given are recognised at the contracted interest rate on accrual basis
at monthly rest, except in case of interest on non-performing assets and charges for delayed payments and cheque
bouncing, if any, which are recognised only when realised.
ii. Loan origination income i.e. processing fees and other charges collected upfront, are recognised at the inception of
the loan.
iii. Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised on a time proportion accrual basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
iv. Other income is recognized when it is probable that the ultimate collection will be made.

2.1.9 Classification and provisioning of loan portfolio
i. Loans and other credit facilities are classified as standard and doubtful (includes Sub-standard, Doubtful and loss assets)
in accordance with the extant Housing Finance Companies, (NHB) Directions, 2010, as amended from time to time.
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ii. Loans are provided for as per the management’s estimates, subject to the minimum provision required as per the extant
Housing Finance Companies, (NHB) Directions, 2010, as amended from time to time.

2.1.10 Retirement and other employee benefits
i. Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident
fund are charged to the Statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions are due. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
ii. Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans are recognized
in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

2.1.11 Foreign Currency Transactions
i. All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.
ii. Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the close of the financial year.
iii. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the restatement of Company's monetary items
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

2.1.12 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are expensed in the period they occur.

2.1.13 Income Taxes
i. Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
ii. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using
the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
iii. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations
where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only
if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

iv. At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred
tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
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22.1 Provision for non-performing assets and standard assets
(INR In Lakhs)
Particulars

For the period ended March 31, 2018
Standard

Sub- Standard

Doubtful

Loss

Total

Loans
Housing Loans

49,075.49

-

-

-

49,075.49

Loan Against Properties

25,318.94

-

-

-

25,318.94

Total Loans

74,394.43

-

-

-

74,394.43

Housing Loans

318.49

-

-

-

318.49

Loan Against Properties

164.31

-

-

-

164.31

Total Provisions

482.80

-

-

-

482.80

Provision

(INR In Lakhs)
Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2017
Standard

Sub- Standard

Doubtful

Loss

Total

Loans
Housing Loans

13,906.82

-

-

-

13,906.82

6,232.06

-

-

-

6,232.06

20,138.88

-

-

-

20,138.88

Housing Loans

55.62

-

-

-

55.62

Loan Against Properties

24.92

-

-

-

24.92

Total Provisions

80.54

-

-

-

80.54

Loan Against Properties
Total Loans
Provision

22.2 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(INR In Lakhs)
Particulars
Contingent liability

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

Nil

Nil

4,054.32

2,124.87

Commitments
Capital Commitments
Undisbursed commitments
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22.3 Retirement Benefits
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund for qualifying employees to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognized as expenses for the year are as under:

Particulars
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund

(INR in Lakhs)
31-Mar-17
40.02

31-Mar-18
92.79

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The following table summarises
the component of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance
sheet for the respective plans based on Mangement Estimates.

(INR in Lakhs)

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars
Current Service Cost

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

20.40

8.51

-

-

2.58

0.81

-

-

(4.72)

3.20

-

-

18.26

12.52

Past Service Cost
Interest Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial Losses / (Gain)
Losses / (Gains) on “Curtailments and Settlements”
Total Expenses to be recognized in the Profit and Loss Account

(INR in Lakhs)

Amount Recognised in the Balance sheet
Particulars
Closing Present Value of obligations

31-Mar-18
33.04

14.77

-

-

33.04

14.77

Closing Fair Value of plan assets
Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet

31-Mar-17

(INR in Lakhs)

Change in in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

Opening Present Value of Obligation

14.77

2.25

Current Service Cost

20.40

8.51

2.58

0.81

-

-

(4.72)

3.20

Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation
Benefits Paid
Net Actuarial Losses / (Gains) Recognized in Year
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Past Service Cost

3.60

-

-

-

36.63

14.77

Liabilities Assumed on Acqusition/(Settled on Divestiture)
Closing Present Value of Obligations

(INR in Lakhs)

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets

-

-

Expected Return on Plan Assets

-

-

Actuarial Gains / (Losses)

-

-

Contributions by Employer

-

-

Benefits Paid

-

-

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets

-

-

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Particulars
Mortality Rate Table

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

IALM 2006 - 08

IALM 2006 - 08

7.80%

7.35%

12.00%

8.00%

Discount Rate
Salary Escalation Rate
Particulars
Defined benefit obligation

2017 - 18

2016 - 17

2015 - 16

36.63

14.77

2.25

-

-

-

(36.63)

(14.77)

(2.25)

7.54

2.76

-

-

-

-

0.09

0.03

-

Plan Asset
Surplus / (Deficit)
Experience Adj. on plan liabilities
Experience Adj. on plan asset
Expected Contribution Next Year

22.4 Related Party Disclosures:
(a) List of related parties:
A. Key Managerial Personnel (K.M.P) and Relatives thereof
Sandeep Menon - Managing Director
Sujay Patil - Chief Financial Officer
Anil Gupta - Company Secretary from 01st July 2016 till 11th August 2017
Pallavi Bhambere - Company Secretary wef 01st Sept 2017
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(b)

Disclosure of related party transactions:

Sr. No.
1

Nature of transactions

(INR in Lakhs)
31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17

Managerial Remunerations (included in employee benefit exps.)
Sandeep Menon - Managing Director
Sujay Patil - Chief Financial Officer
Anil Gupta - Company Secretary from 01st July 2016 till 11th August
2017
Pallavi Bhambere - Company Secretary wef 01st Sept 2017

250.80
129.00

112.00
60.00

0.84
2.10

1.72
-

Note:
Related Party Relationship is as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors.
No amount is / has been written off or written back during the year in respect of debts due from or to related parties.
The transactions with related parties are disclosed only till the relationship exists.

22.5 Loans & Advances
Balance grouped under loans and advances in certain cases are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. Impact of the
same, if any, shall be accounted as and when determined.
In the opinion of the management the loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realized, paid in ordinary
course of business. The provision for all known liabilities are adequate and are not in excess of amount considered
reasonably necessary.

22.6 Other Reporting
a. Segment Reporting
The Company has a single reportable segment i.e. financing which has similar risk and return for the purpose of AS 17 on
‘Segment Reporting’ notified under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,2006 (as amended).The Company operates
in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

b. Foreign Currency Reporting
There were no expenditure or outgo in the foreign exchange currency.

c. Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of activities, the company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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22.7 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Items

Mar-18

Mar-17

CRAR (%)

80.92%

96.02%

CRAR – Tier I Capital (%)

79.87%

96.02%

CRAR – Tier II Capital (%)
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital

22.83%
-

0.00%
-

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

-

-

22.8 Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category

(INR in Lakhs)
Mar-18

Mar-17

a) Direct exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented;
- Individual housing loans upto Rs. 15 lakh

28,717.08

7,596.55

- Individual housing loans above Rs. 15 lakh

20,358.41

6,310.27

- Other loans

25,318.94

6,232.06

(ii) Commercial Real Estate ** Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail
space, multipurpose commercial Premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted Commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land
acquisition, development and construction etc.) Exposure would also include nonfund based (NFB) limits

Nil

Nil

a. Residential

Nil

Nil

b. Commercial Real Estate

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

(iii) Investments in Mortgaged Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised
exposures -

b) Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
** the exposure represents construction finance for residential buildings
In computing the above information, certain estimates, assumption and adjustments have been made by the management
which have been relied upon by the auditors.
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22.9 Asset Liability Management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
FY 2017-18

(INR in Lakhs)

Liabilities
Particulars
1 month

Borrowings
from banks &
Others
313.74

Assets

Market
Borrowings - CP
NCD ICD

Advances

Investments

-

126.95

-

Over 1 month to 2 months

367.37

-

144.81

-

Over 2 months to 3 months

758.08

-

145.52

-

Over 3 months to 6 months

1,440.04

192.31

448.59

-

Over 6 months to 1 year

3,576.94

384.62

951.20

-

Over 1 year to 3 years

16,471.67

1,538.46

4,912.89

-

Over 3 years to 5 years

11,125.95

384.62

6,537.28

-

Over 5 years to 7 years

204.80

10,000.00

8,618.83

-

Over 7 years to 10 years

307.20

-

17,775.06

-

Over 10 years

462.30

-

34,733.30

-

35,028.09

12,500.00

74,394.43

-

Total

(INR in Lakhs)

FY 2016-17
Liabilities
Particulars

Borrowings
from banks & Others

Assets
Market
Borrowings-CP
NCD ICD

Advances

Investments

1 month

46.47

-

29.06

-

Over 1 month to 2 months

56.47

-

39.38

-

Over 2 months to 3 months

148.33

-

38.54

-

Over 3 months to 6 months

341.08

-

119.85

-

Over 6 months to 1 year

734.99

-

257.13

-

Over 1 year to 3 years

3,548.94

-

1,225.97

-

Over 3 years to 5 years

3,332.45

-

1,629.00

-

Over 5 years to 7 years

-

-

2,127.40

-

Over 7 years to 10 years

-

-

4,381.73

-

Over 10 years

-

-

10,290.82

-

8,208.72

-

20,138.88

-

Total

In computing the above information, certain estimates, assumption and adjustments have been made by the management
which have been relied upon by the auditors
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(INR in Lakhs)

22.10 Reserve Fund under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Particulars

Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year
a)

Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

77.59

b)

Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for
the purposes of Statutory Reserve under , Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c)

Total

77.59

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add :

Less :

a)

Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

550.06

b)

Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into
account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act,
1987

-

a)

Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

-

b)

Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act,
1961 which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987

-

Balance at the end of the year
a)

Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

627.65

b)

Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for
the purposes of Statutory Reserve under , Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c)

Total

627.65

The special reserve created as per Section 29 C of the NHB Act, 1987, qualifies for deduction as specified u/s 36 (1) (viii) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accordingly Company has been availing tax benefits for such transfers.

22.11 Investments
Particulars

(INR in Lakhs)
Current Year

Previous Year

1. Value of Investments
(i) Gross value of Investments
(a) In India

-

-

(b) Outside India

-

-

(a) In India

-

-

(b) Outside India

-

-

(a) In India

-

-

(b) Outside India

-

-

(ii) Provisions for Depreciation

(iii) Net Value of Investments
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2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i) Opening balance

-

-

(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year

-

-

(iii) Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during the year

-

-

(iv) Closing balance

-

-

22.12 Derivatives
The Company has not entered into any derivatives transaction during the said year.

22.13 Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

(INR in Lakhs)
Current Year

Particulars

Previous Year

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements

-

-

(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their
obligations under the agreements

-

-

(iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps

-

-

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps $

-

-

(v) The fair value of the swap book @

-

-

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market risk and the accounting policies adopted
for recording the swaps should also be disclosed.
$ Examples of concentration could be exposures to particular industries or swaps with highly geared companies.
@ If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or commitments, the fair value would be the estimated amount that
the HFC would receive or pay to terminate the swap agreements as on the balance sheet date.

22.14 Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative
Particulars

(INR in Lakhs)
Current
Year

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrumentwise)
(a)
(b)
(c)

-

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31st March 2018
(instrument-wise)
(a)
(b)
(c)

-

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"
(instrument-wise)
(a)
(b)
(c)

-

(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"
(instrument-wise)
(a)
(b)
(c)

-
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22.15 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
A. Qualitative Disclosure
Not Applicable

B. Quantitative Disclosure
Particulars

Currency Derivatives

Interest Rate Derivatives

(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

-

-

(ii) Marked to Market Positions [1]

-

-

(a) Assets (+)

-

-

(b) Liability (-)

-

-

(iii) Credit Exposure [2]

-

-

(iv) Unhedged Exposures

-

-

22.16 Securitisation
Particulars

No. / Amount

1. No of SPVs sponsored by the HFC for securitisation transactions*

-

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored

-

3. Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance
sheet

-

(i) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a)
(b)

-

(ii) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a)
(b)

-

4. Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR

-

(i) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a) Exposure to own securitisations
(b) Exposure to third party securitisations

-

(ii) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a) Exposure to own securitisations
(b) Exposure to third party securitisations

-

*Only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions may be reported here

76

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | 2017-18 | Annual Report

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018
22.17 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars

Current Year

(i) No. of accounts
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC
(iii) Aggregate consideration
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in
earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

Previous Year
-

-

-

-

22.18 Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs
Particulars

(INR in Lakhs)
Current Year

Previous Year

(i) No. of accounts

-

-

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assigned

-

-

(iii) Aggregate consideration

-

-

(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in
earlier years

-

-

(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

-

-

22.19 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
Particulars

(INR in Lakhs)
Current Year

Previous Year

(i) No. of accounts purchased during the year

-

-

(ii) Aggregate outstanding

-

-

(a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year

-

-

(b) Aggregate outstanding

-

-

A. Details of non-performing financial assets sold:
Particulars

(INR in Lakhs)
Current Year

Previous Year

(i) No. of accounts sold

-

-

(ii) Aggregate outstanding

-

-

(iii) Aggregate consideration received

-

-
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22.20 Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars

(INR in Lakhs)
Current
Year

Previous
Year

(i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units
of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt;

-

-

(ii) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to
individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

-

-

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

-

-

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of
shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

-

-

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of
stockbrokers and market makers;

-

-

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or
other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;

-

-

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

-

-

(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

-

-

Total Exposure to Capital Market

-

-

22.21 Details of financing of parent company products
There are no products of Parent company which are financed by Vastu HFC.

22.22 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC
No exposures where the company had exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year.

22.23 Unsecured Advances
No unsecured advances

22.24 Miscellaneous
Nil

22.24.1 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
No Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

22.24.2 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators
No Penalties imposed by NHB and other Regulators
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22.24.3 Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year
Sr No.

Instrument Type

Name

Rating

1

NCD and Bank Loans

CRISIL Ratings

BBB+ Stable

2

Bank Loans

India Ratings

A- Stable

3

NCD and Bank Loans

Brickworks

BWR A Stable

22.24.4 Remuneration of Directors
No Remuneration paid to Non Executive directors.

22.24.5 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no material prior period items. Further, there has been no change in accoutning policies followed.

22.24.6 Revenue Recognition
There has been no instance whereby revenue recogntion has been postponed.

22.24.7 Accounting Standard 21 – Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)
The company does not have any subsidiary company and hence Accounting Standard 21 – Consolidated Financial
Statements (CFS) is not applicable.

22.25 Additional Disclosures
22.25.1 Provisions and Contingencies
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

(INR in Lakhs)
Current
Year

1. Provisions for depreciation on Investment

-

2. Provision made towards Income tax

737.48

3. Provision towards NPA

-

4. Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, CRE-RH etc.)

402.27

5. Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)

-

Previous
Year
13.97
(633.31)
73.59
-

22.25.2 Draw Down from Reserves
No draw down from Reserves during the year
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22.25.3 Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

22.25.3.1 Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)
Particulars

(INR in Lakhs)

Current Year

Previous Year

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors

-

-

Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the HFC

-

-

22.25.3.2 Concentration of Loans & Advances
Particulars

(INR in Lakhs)
Current Year

Previous Year

986.31

769.16

1.33%

3.82%

Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances
of the HFC

22.25.3.3 Concentration of all Exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)
Particulars
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers

(INR in Lakhs)

Current Year

Previous Year

986.31

769.16

1.33%

3.82%

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to
Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers

22.25.3.4 Concentration of NPAs
Particulars

Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts
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Previous Year

-

-
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(INR in Lakhs)

22.25.3.5 Sector-wise NPAs
Sr. No

Sector

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector

A

Housing Loans:

-

1

Individuals

-

2

Builders/Project Loans

-

3

Corporates

-

4

Others (specify)

-

B

Non-Housing Loans:

-

1

Individuals

-

2

Builders/Project Loans

-

3

Corporates

-

4

Others (specify)

-

(INR in Lakhs)

22.25.3.5 Movement of NPAs
Particulars
(I) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)

Current
Year

Previous
Year

-

-

(II) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance

-

734.74

b) Additions during the year

-

-

c) Reductions during the year

-

(734.74)

d) Closing balance

-

-

(III) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance

-

101.43

b) Additions during the year

-

-

c) Reductions during the year

-

(101.43)

d) Closing balance

-

-

(IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance

-

633.31

b) Provisions made during the year

-

-

c) Write-off/write-back of excess provisions

-

(633.31)

d) Closing balance

-

-
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(INR in Lakhs)

22.25.3.6 Overseas Assets
Particulars

Current
Year

Previous
Year

-

-

No Overseas Assets

22.25.3.7 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting
Norms)
Name of the SPV sponsored
Domestic

Overseas

No SPVs sponsored

No SPVs sponsored

22.26 Disclosure of Complaints
22.26.1 Customers Complaints
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

-

-

b) No. of complaints received during the year

169

21

c) No. of complaints redressed during the year

169

21

-

-

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

22.27 Expected future minimum commitment in accordance with AS 19 - Leases during the noncancellable period under the lease agreements are as follows:
Particulars

Mar-18

Mar-17

Within one year

35.60

0.49

Within one - five years

23.24

-

22.28
There is no amount due and payable to micro and small suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 at the end of the year. No interest has been paid/ is payable by the Company during / for the year to
these ‘Suppliers’. The above information takes into account only those suppliers who have submitted their registration details
or has responded to the inquiries made by the Company for this purpose.
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22.29
Previous year figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged and re-classified wherever necessary, to
conform to current year's classification.

For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants
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